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December 5, 2024 IS.5A
His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Safety, NH Office of Highway Safety (OHS) permission to enter into a sole
source contract with NHIAA (New Hampshire Interscholastic Athletic Association), (VC#!5420l-B00l)
251 Clinton Street Concord, NH 03301 in an amount not to exceed $31,500.00 to coordinate traffic safety
campaigns during the 2024-2025 sports season (SFY-2025). Effective upon Governor and Council approval
through September 30, 2025. 100% Federal Funds

Funds are available in the following accounts for SFY 2025:

02-23-23-231010-75410000 Dept. of Safety- Office of Commissioner-
NHTSA Grants 102 500731 Contracts for Program Services SFY2025

$23,625.00

02-23-23-231010-75430000 Dept. ofSafety- Office of Commissioner-
410/Alcohol 102 500731 Contracts for Program Services:

Grand Total:

SFY2025

$7,875.00

$31,500.00

EXPLANATION

Under age 21 operator fatalities in the state of New Hampshire have increased sharply from I in 2022 and
3 in 2023 to 10 in 2024, representing a 233.33% increase from 2023 to date. The purpose of this request is
for the NHIAA to deliver Highway Safety messaging to youth-based gatherings through public service
announcements. This is a sole source contract because, since 1947, the NHIAA has been organizing,
supervising and coordinating a statewide athletic program, with sole responsibility for organizing the
statewide interscholastic athletic championships and is exclusively responsible for managing, developing,
and conducting all public relations activities related to their operation. Informing and educating the
motoring public and vulnerable road users about important highway safety issues is an effective tool in the
overall effort to save lives on New Hampshire roads, and it is important for these safety messages to target
the correct demographic. This contract with the NHIAA allows the Office of Highway Safety to target the
demographics most often at risk: young males ages 19 and 25, adults ages 36-55 and teens 18 and under.
The NHIAA venue offers many options for delivery of messaging, including radio PSAs, video board PSAs
and in-game promotions like trivia, on-field promotions that encourages fan participation, signage in several
areas and sponsorships.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
And the Honorable Council
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This contract will promote the Speeding, Distracted Driving, Impaired Driving and Occupant Protection
campaigns by providing PSAs to be played on State athletic championship video boards, preceded by an
announcement directing attention to the videoboard, which will include a "Scan to Take Pledge" QR code.

In the event that Federal Funds are no longer available, General Funds and/or Highway Funds will not be
requested to support this program. |

Respectfully submitted,

Robert L. i^inn
Commissioner of Safety



form number P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

fyotice: This agreement and all of Its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Coundl for approval. Any Information that Is private, conndenilal. or proprietarv must be
dearly Identified to the agency and agreed to In v/riting prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The Stale of Kcw Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 State Agency Name

NH OfTiccofHiehwav Safety

1 !2 State Agency Address

33 Hazcn Drive
Cnnr.nrd.NH 03305

1.3 Contractor Nome

NH! AA - New Hampshire Iniersciiolastic Athletic Association

114 Contractor Address

251 Clinton Street
Cnnrmrd. NH 03301

1.5 Contractor Phone
Number

nm.rjR. 8671

1.6 Account Number

See Exhibit C

117 Complciion Date

nono/2025

1.8 Price Limitation

$31,500.00

1.9 Contracting Ofnccr for State Agency

Jeffrey A. Londi

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

603-271-6709

l.ll ControctDf-Stgrertare . . 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
"T. ^

>4v\i

1.13 StHl^gcwCy Signature 1.14 Name and Title of Slate Agency Signatory

Amv L. Newbury. Director of Administration

1.15 Approval by^he N.l-|(^artmcni ol Administration, Divisioh of Personnel Of apphcabte)
Uy. DirKlor, On;

1.16 Approval by the At^ney General (Form, Substance and Exc'culion) (Ifapplicable)

K-/cn/i-^

1.17 "T^rovaTEy the Governor and Executive Council (ifappiic

G&C Item number;

able)

G&C Meeting Dote:
1
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block I.I
("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shal I
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 if the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT 8, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess ofsuch available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of ail payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intcllectua)
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United Stales
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with ail rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in (he Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Dale in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event

of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement,
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the Slate may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, temiinate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thiny (30) days wrincn notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor

shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and
submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. assignment/delegation/subcontracts.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fiffy percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Stale, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
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the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omission of the
Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance;
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than 51,000,000 per occurrence and 52,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall ftirnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, cerlificatc(s) of insurance
for all rcnewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certificate(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are Incorporated herein by
reference,

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensaiion ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable rcnewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The Slate
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire

Workers' Compensation laws in connection
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

with the

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only afier approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be govemed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict

between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
e.xecuted in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

U.S. Department of Transportation/NHTSA Grant Conditions:

As a result of participating in federal highway safety grant programs administered by National Highway Traffic Safety
Administration (NHTSA) and the US Department of Transportation (USDOT), highway safety subrecipients are required to comply
with the following documents:

•  Subrecipients agree to comply with all applicable elements of NHTSA's Memorandum: Use of NHTSA Highway Safety Grant
Funds for Certain Purchases May 18, 2016 and found at the following Web link.: httpsi/Zwww.nhtsa.gov/highway-safety-
grants-program/resources-guide . Subrecipients should jpay particular attention to the sections on (1) allowable costs for
equipment, travel, training, and consultant services; and (2) unallowable costs for equipment, facilities and construction,
training and program administration. |

•  Subrecipients agree to comply with all applicable elements of 2 CFR 200 • the Uniform Administrative Requirement for
Grants, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements as promulgated by the U.S. Department of Transportation. This document
is found at the following Web link https://www.nhtsa.gov/highway-safety-grants-program/resources-guide .

• Subrecipients agree to comply with all applicable Federal basic and Incentive grant program requirements as outlined in
the Highway Safety Grant Management Manual found at the following Web link: https;//www.nhtsa.gov/highway-safety-
grants-program. This document provides information on each of the grant programs.

The following additional provisions apply to highway safety subrecipients as a result of certifications and assurances provided to
NHTSA by State Highway Safety Offices in their Highway Safety Plan:

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

The State will comply with applicable statutes and regulations, including but not limited to:

23
Sec

U.S.C. Chapter 4 Highway Safety Act of 1966, as amended
:. 1906, Pud. L. 109-39, as amended by Sec. 25024 Pub. L. ]117-58

23 CFR part 1300 Uniform Procedures for State Highway Safety Grant Programs . r r j i a ,4
2 CFR part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
2 CFR part 1201 Department of Transportation, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards 1

NONDISCRIMINATION

(applies to subrecipients as well as States)

The State highway safety agency (and its subrecipients) will comply with all Federal statutes and Implementing regulations relating to
nondiscrimination ("Federal Nondiscrimination Authorities"). These include but are not limited to:

. Title VI of the Civil Rights Art of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d it seq., 78 stat. 252), (prohibits discrimination on the basis of race,
•^9 CFR p*art 21 Entitled Non-discrimination in Federally-Assisted Programs of the Deportment of Transportation—
f^s'^C^pf^rtion 50.3'^^ Ju'siice Guidelines for Enforcement of Title VI of the Civil Rights Art of 1964);
• The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42 U.S.C. 4601), (prohibits unfair
treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been acquired because of Federal or Federal-aid programs and
projects);
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• Federal-Aid HIghwayActof 1973, (23 U.S.C 324etseq.), and Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended
(20 U.S.C. 1681-1683 and 1685-1686) prohibit discrimination on the basis of sex);
• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. 794 et seq.), as amended, (prohibits discrimination on the basis
of disability) and 49 CFR part 27;

Act

terms

"progra'^s or acttvities' to include all of the programs or activibes of the Federal aid recipients, subrkipi'ents and contractors. Wi^Tether such
programs or activities are Federally-funded or not); I
• Titles 11 and Ml of the Americans with Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. 12131-12189) (prohibits discrimination on the basis of
disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of public accommodation, and
certain testing) and 49 CFR parts 37 and 38; |
• Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in
Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations (preventing discrimination against minority populations by discouraging
programs, policies, and activities with disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental effeas on minority and
low-income populations); |
• Executive Order 13166. Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency (requiring that recipients of Federal
financial assistance provide meaningful access for applicants and beneficiaries who have limited English profldency (LEP));
• Executive Order 13985, Advancing Racial tquity and Support for Underserved Communities through the Federal
Government (advancing equity across the Federal government); and
• Executive Order 13988. Preventing and Combating Discrimination on the Basis of Gender Identity or Sexual Orientation
(clarifying that sex discrimination includes discrimination on the grounds of gender identity or sexual orientation).

The preceding statutory and regulatory cites hereinafter are refyred as the "Acts" and "Regulations," respectively.
General Assurances

In accordance with the Acts, the Regulations, and other pertinent directives, circulars, policy, memoranda, and/or guidance, the
Recipient hereby gives assurance that it will promptly take any measures necessary to ensure that:

"No person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be
denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity, for which the Recipient receives
Federalfinancial assistance from DOT, including NHTSA. "

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 clarified the original intent of Congress, with respect to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of
1964 and other non-discrimination requirements (the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973), by restoring the broad, institutional-wide scope and coverage of these nondiscrimination statutes and requirements to include
all programs and activities of the Recipient, so long as any portion of the program is Federally assisted.

Specific Assurances

More specifically, and without limiting the above general Assurance, the Recipient agrees with and gives the following Assurances
with respect to its Federally assisted Highway Safety Grant Program:

2.

The Recipient agrees that each "activity," "facility," or "program," as defined in § 21.23(b) and (e) of 49 CFR part 21 will be
(with regard to an "activity") facilitated, or will be (with regard to a "facility") operated, or will be (with regard to a
"program") conducted in compliance with all requirements imposed by, or pursuant to the Acts and the Regulations.
The Recipient will insert the following notification in all solicitations for bids. Requests For Proposals for work, or material
subject to the Acts and the Regulations made in connection with all Highway Safely Grant Programs and, in adapted form, in
all proposals for negotiated agreements regardless of funding source:

"The jname of Recipient!, in accordance with the provisions of Title V! of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stal, 252, 42 U.S.C
2000d to 2000d-4) and the Regulations, hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that in any contract entered into
pursuant to this advertisement, disadvantaged business enterprises will be affordedfull andfair opportunity to submit bids in
response to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in consideration
for an award."

3. The Recipient will insert the clauses of appendix A and E of this Assurance (also referred to as DOT Order 1050.2A)l'' in
every contract or agreement subject to the Acts and the Regulations.
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4. The Recipient will insert the clauses of appendix B orDO;r Order I050.2A, as a covenant running with the land, in any deed
from the United States effecting or recording a transfer of^real property, structures, use, or improvements thereon or interest
therein to a Recipient. ]

5. That where the Recipient receives Federal financial assistance to construct a facility, or part of a facility, the Assurance will
extend to the entire facility and facilities operated in connection therewith.

6. That where the Recipient receives Federal financial assistance in the form of, or for the acquisition of, real property or an
interest in real property, the Assurance will extend to rights to space on, over, or under such property.

7. That the Recipient will include the clauses set forth in appendix C and appendix D of this DOT Order I050.2A, as a covenant
running with the land, in any future deeds, leases, licenses, permits, or similar instruments entered into by the Recipient with
other parties: |

a. for the subsequent transfer of real property acquired or improved under the applicable activity, project, or program;
3nd

b. for the construction or use of, or access to, space on, over, or under real property acquired or improved under the
applicable activity, project, or program. |

8. That this Assurance obligates the Recipient for the period during which Federal financial assistance is extended to the
program, except where the Federal financial assistance is to provide, or is in the form of, personal property, or real property,
or interest therein, or structures or improvements thereon] in which case the Assurance obligates the Recipient, or any
transferee for the longer ofthe following periods: |

a. the period during which the property is used for a purpose for which the Federal financial assistance is extended, or
for another purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits; or

b. the period during which the Recipient retains ownership or possession of the property.
9. The Recipient will provide for such methods of administration for the program as are found by the Secretary of

Transportation or the official to whom he/she delegates specific authority to give reasonable guarantee that it, other
recipients, sub-recipients, sub-grantees, contractors, subcontractors, consultants, transferees, successors in mtcrcsi, and other
participants of Federal financial assistance under such program will comply with all requirements imposed or pursuant to the
Acts, the Regulations, and this Assurance.

10. The Recipient agrees that the United States has a right to seek judicial enforcement with regard to any matter arising under
the Acts, the Regulations, and this Assurance.

By signing this ASSURANCE, the State highway safety agency also agrees to comply (and require any sub-recipients, sub-grantees,
contractors, successors, transferees, and/or assignees to comply) with all applicable provisions governing NHTSA s access to records,
accounts, documents, information, facilities, and staff. You also recognize that you must comply with any program or compliance
reviews, and/or complaint investigations conducted by NHTSA. ̂ou must keep records, reports, and submit the material for review
upon request to NHTSA, or its designec in a timely, complete, and accurate way. Additionally, you must comply with all other
reporting, data collection, and evaluation requirements, as prescribed by law or detailed in program guidance.

The State highway safely agency gives this ASSURANCE in consideration of and for obtaining any Federal grants, loans, contracts,
agreements, property, and/or discounts, or other Federal-aid and Federal financial assistance extended after the date hereof to the
recipients by the U.S. Department of Transportation under the Highway Safety Grant Program. This ASSURANCE is binding on the
State highway safety agency, other recipients, sub-rccipients, sub-jgraniees, contractors, subcontractors and their subcontractors,
transferees, successors in interest, and any other participants in the Highway Safety Grant Program. The person(s) signing below is/are
authorized to sign this ASSURANCE on behalf of the Recipient.

POLITICAL AaiVITY (HATCH AO)

(applies to subreciplents as well as States)

The State will comply with provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. 1501-1508), which limits the political activities of employees whose
principal employment activities are funded In whole or in part with Federal funds.

CERTIFICATION REGARDING FEDERAL LOBBYING
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(applies to subreclpients as well as States)

Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for Influencing
or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or
an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant,
the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal,
amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement;

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have beenjpaid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to
influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall
complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form tolReport Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions;

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all sub-awards at all
tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grant, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients
shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into.
Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S.
Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more
than $100,000 for each such failure.

RESTRICTION ON STATE LOBBYING

(applies to subrecipients as well as States)

None of the funds under this program will be used for any activity Ipecifically designed to urge or influence a State or local
legislator to favor or oppose the adoption of any specific legislative proposal pending before any State or local legislative body. Such
aaivities include both direct and indirect (e.g., "grassroots") lobbyjing activities, with one exception. This does not preclude a State
official whose salary is supported with NHTSA funds from engaging in direct communications with State or local legislative officials,
in accordance with customary State practice, even if such communications urge legislative officials to favor or oppose the adoption
of a specific pending legislative proposal.

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION

(applies to subrecipients as well as States)

Instructions for Lower Tier Participant Certification

1. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective lower tier participant is providing the certification set out below and
agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 CFR parts 180 and 1200.

2. The certification in this clause is a material representation of|fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective lower tier participant knowingly reridered an erroneous certification, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government,|the department or agency with which this transaction originated
may pursue available remedies, including suspension or debarment.

3 The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate |Written notice to the person to which this proposal is submitted if
at any time the prospective lower tier participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous
by reason of changed circumstances.

4 The terms covered transaction, civil judgment, debarment, suspension, ineligible, participant, person, principal, and voluntarily
excluded, as used in this clause, are defined in 2 CFR parts 180 and 1200. You may contact the person to whom this proposal is
submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations.
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5. The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered
into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR
part 9, subpart 9.4, debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction,
unless authorized by the department or agency with which this transaction originated.

6. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause titled "instructions
for Lower Tier Participant Certification" including the "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary
Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transaction," without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for
lower tier covered transactions and will require lower tier participants to comply with 2 CFR parts 180 and 1200.

7. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction
that it is not proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart|9.4, debarred, suspended, ineiigible, or voluntarily excluded from
the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant is responsible for ensuring that its principals
are not suspended, debarred, or otherwise ineligible to participatejin covered transactions. To verify the eligibiiity of its principals, as
well as the eligibility of any prospective lower tier participants, each participant may, but is not required to, check the System for
Award Management Exclusions website (https://www.sam.gov/i.

8. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good
faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which Is
normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

9. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly
enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4,
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available
to the Federal Government, the department or agency with wiiich this transaction originated may pursue available remedies,
including suspension or debarment. [
Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions:

1. The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its principals is presently
debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participating in covered
transactions by any Federal department or agency. |

2. Where the prospective lower tier participant's unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective
participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

BUY AMERICA ACT

(applies to subrecipients as well as States)

The State and each subrecipient will comply with the Buy America requirement (23 U.S.C. 313) when purchasing items using Federal
funds. Buy America requires a State, or subrecipient, to purchase with Federal funds only steel, iron and manufactured products
produced in the United States, unless the Secretary of Transportation determines that such domestically produced items would be
inconsistent with the public interest, that such materials are not reasonably available and of a satisfactory quality, or that Inclusion
of domestic materials will increase the cost of the overall project contract by more than 25 percent. In order to use Federal funds to
purchase foreign produced items, the State must submit a waiver request that provides an adequate basis and justification for
approval by the Secretary of Transportation.

Certification on Conflict of Interest

(Applies to Subrecipients as Well as States)

General Requirements

I

No employee, officer or agent of a State or its subrecipient who isjauthorized in an official capacity to negotiate, make, accept or
approve, or to take part in negotiating, making, accepting or approving any subaward, including contracts or subcontracts, in
connection with this grant shall have, directly or indirectly, any financial or personal interest in any such subaward. Such a financial
or personal interest would arise when the employee, officer, or agent, any member of his or her immediate family, his or her
partner, or an organization which employs or is about to employ any of the parties indicated herein, has a financial or personal
interest in or a tangible personal benefit from an entity considered for a subaward. Based on this policy:
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1. The recipient shall maintain a written code or standards of conduct that provide for disciplinary actions to be applied for violations
of such standards by officers, employees, or agents.

a. The code or standards shall provide that the recipient's officers, employees, or agents may neither solicit nor accept gratuities,
favors, or anything of monetary value from present or potential subawardees, including contractors or parties to subcontracts.

I

b. The code or standards shall establish penalties, sanctions or other disciplinary actions for violations, as permitted by State or local
law or regulations.

2. The recipient shall maintain responsibility to enforce the requirements of the written code or standards of conduct.

Disclosure Requirements

No State or its subredplent, including its officers, employees or agents, shall perform or continue to perform under a grant or
cooperative agreement, whose objectivity may be impaired because of any related past, present, or currently planned Interest,
financial or otherwise, in organizations regulated by NHTSA or in organizations whose interests may be substantially affected by
NHTSA activities. Based on this policy:

1. The recipient shall disclose any conflict of interest identified as soon as reasonably possible, making an immediate and full
disclosure in writing to NHTSA. The disclosure shall include a description of the action which the recipient has taken or proposes to
take to avoid or mitigate such conflict.

2. NHTSA will review the disclosure and may require additional relevant information from the recipient. If a conflict of interest is
found to exist, NHTSA may

(a) terminate the award, or

(b) determine that it is otherwise in the best interest of NHTSA to
or avoid such conflict.

continue the award and include appropriate provisions to mitigate

3. Conflicts of interest that require disclosure include all past, present or currently planned organizational, financial, contractual or
other interest(s) with an organization regulated by NHTSA or with'an organization whose interests may be substantially affected by
NHTSA activities, and which are related to this award. The interest(s) that require disclosure include those of any recipient, affiliate,
proposed consultant, proposed subcontractor and key personnel of any of the above. Past interest shall be limited to within one
year of the date of award. Key personnel shall include any personjowning more than a 20 percent interest in a recipient, and the
officers, employees or agents of a recipient who are responsible for making a decision or taking an action under an award where the
decision or action can have an economic or other impact on the interests of a regulated or affected organization.

PROHIBITION ON USING GRANT FUNDS TO CHECK FOR HELMET USAGE

(applies to subrecipients as well as States)

The State and each subrecipient will not use 23 U.5.C. Chapter
checkpoints that specifically target motorcyclists.

4 grant funds for programs to check helmet usage or to create

As a result of participating in Federal highway safety grant programs administered by National Highway Traffic Safety
Administration (NHTSA) and the US Department of Transportation (USOOT), highway safety subrecipients are required to
understand and comply with the following additional applicable Part 2 CFR 200 statutes and regulations:
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women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms.

§ 2 CFR 200.216 Prohibition on certain telecommunications and video surveillance services or equipment.

§ 2 CFR 200.317 Procurements by states. I

1

§ 2 CFR 200.318 General procurement standards.

§2 CFR 200.319 Competition.

§ 2 CFR 200.320 Methods of procurement to be followed.

§ 2 CFR 200.321 Contracting with small and minority businesses,

§ 2 CFR 200.322 Domestic preferences for procurements.

§ 2 CFR 200.323 Procurement of recovered materials.

S 2 CFR 200.340 Termination.

S 2 CFR 200.414 Indirect (F&A) costs.

Appendix II to Part 200 • Contract Provisions for Non-Federal Entity Contracts Under Federal Awards.

I understand that failure to comply with applicable Federal statutes and regulations may subject State officials to civil or criminal
penalties and/or place the State In a high risk grantee status in accordance with 2 CFR 200.

I sign these Certifications and Assurances based on personal knowledge, after appropriate Inquiry, and I understand that the
Government will rely on these representations in awarding grant funds.

Date: <Q I ^^1 ̂Authorized Contract Signal

Signers Printed Name: A
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EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

Employment of Contractor Services to be Performed

This contract is effective upon Governor and Council Approval through September 30, 2025. The total
cost of this contract shall not exceed $31,500.00.

The NH Office of Highway Safety (OHS) reserves the right to reject any creative not approved within this
contract or not eligible under the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration Grant Program. The
Contractor will incur any costs associated with developing additional materials, props, equipment, etc.

The general responsibilities of the contractor are as I

a) To administer all materials needed for air play o

bllows:

"advertisements as referenced below, including printed

materials, if any.

b) To provide with proof of performance and the following itemized information about each campaign:
total number run, dollar value, date and time of airing and campaign topic, (ie: distracted driving,
speeding, etc.)

c) To ensure the ads run within the approved flight date within the correct HVE or social norming
campaign, if applicable.

The contractor will be responsible for the payment of any subcontractors.

The responsibilities of the contractor for each campaign are as follows:

Total Campaign Value: $39,000

Total Campaign Cost to NHDOS (Oct. '24-June '251: $31.500.00 + ($7,500 Earned Media)

The NHIAA will display one (1) :15 - :30 PSA (.MP4 Commerc a!) for each program area:
•  Speed

Distracted

•  Impaired

•  Occupant Protection

At the following Championships:

2025 NHIAA Baseball State Championships

Delta Dental Stadium in Manchester, NH (Outfield VideoboaVd)
June 14 (Rain date of June 15) - 4 Games (Divisions I, II, III, IV)

Each Video to Run a Total of 4 times (1/game x 4 games)

Each video to be preceded by an announcement asking fans to direct attention to screen.
QR code w/ a "Scan to Take Pledge" slide to be shown a

Total Cost: $10,500

Fter video.
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2025 AA Hockey State Championships

5NHU Arena in Manchester, NH (center-hung videoboard) March 15, 2025

Boys Divisions I, II, and III and Girls (only one division) -1,400 participants from New Hampshire High Schools (3 Boys
Divisions, 1 Girls Division) Estimated Attendance: 6,500 (3 Boys Championship Games, 1 Girls Championship Game)

-  Each video to run a total of four (4) times (4/division x 4 divisions (3 boys, I girls))
-  Each video to be preceded by an announcement asking fans to direct attention to screen
-  QR Code w/a "Scan to Take Pledge" slide to be shown after video

Total Cost: $10,500

2025 NHIAA Outdoor Track and Field Championships - MEET OF CHAMPIONS

University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH (Endzone Videoboard) OR SNHU (Endzone Videoboard)
First week of June

Outdoor Track, and ~800 "Best of the Best" athletes at Meet of Champions the following weekend.
Each Video to Run one time during event. |
Each video to be preceded by an announcement asking fans to direct attention to screen.

QR code w/ a "Scan to Take Pledge" slide to be shown after video.

Total Cost: $10,500

ADDED MEDIA VALUE/EARNED MEDIA.

•  Display Ads at NHIAA.org directing visitors {7.4 MIL annually) to NH DOS Web site/survey/NHTSA website/Traffic
Safety Marketing.

•  SOCIAL MEDIA: The NHIAA will display one (1) :15 - :30 PSA (.MP4 Commercial) for each program area:

o  Speed

o Distracted

0  Impaired

o  Occupant Protection

One post per month during each month of partnership, with link to NHOHS Website.
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EXH BITC

Terms of Payment

The appropriate account number for the P-37 form, section 1.6 is as follows: Office of Highway Safety

Payment for contracted services for advertisement will be made within (30) days upon the State's timely
receipt, acceptance and approval of each itemized invoice as follows:

Payment - upon completion of aired advertisements and Department of Safety, Office of Highway Safety's
receipt of final performance and evaluation report as stated in the Scope of Services for an amount up to
$31,500.00.

Invoice(s) shall be submitted to:

Julia M. Wayland, Accountant,
New Hampshire Department of Safety
Office of Highway Safety, Room 208
33 Hazen Drive Concord, NH 03305
Julia.M.Wavland'.a^dos.nh.viov

Funding is available in SFY25 budget as follows:

02-23-23-231010-7541000,02-23-23-231010-7543000 Dept. ofSafety-Office ofCommissioner-NHTSA Grants and
Alcohol-Impaired Driving.
102 500731 Contracts for Program Services:

Police Traffic Services (Speeding): $7,875.00
Distracted Driving: $7,875.00
Impaired Driving: $7,875.00
Occupant Protection: $7.875.00

Total: $31,500.00
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Awarding Agency: Office of Highway Safety (O.HS)

Federal Awarding Agency: National Highway traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA), US DOT
NHTSA Region 1 55 Broadway, RTV-8E Cambridge, MA 02142
Bill & Supplemental Bill - 402 & Flex 40Se

FAIN Number (Sub Award): 69A3752230SUP4620NHO, 69A37523300004020NHO,
69A37S2330SUP4020NHO, 69A37524300004020NHO, 69A3752430SUP4020NHO,

69A3752S300004D20NHO, 69A3752530SUP4020NHO, 69A3752430000405eNHA,

69A3752430SUP405eNHA, 69A375253000G4C)5eNHA, 69A3752530SUP405eNHA,

69A3752430000405eNHL, 69A3752430SUP405eNHL. 69A375253000040SeNHL,

69A3752530SUP405eNHL I
2 3-" 27^

Project Title & Number: New Hampshire Interscholastic Athletic Association (NHIAA) ̂4-32^
Funding Source; PSP & Task ft: 25-02-03 |
UEI# C1UBCQ63KHG9 Expiration: 1/17/2025 Date Stamped: 10/08/24

Award Title: NHTSA Section 402 Police Traffic Services - Speeding

Assistance Listing Number (ALN): 20.600

Is This a Research and Development Project (Yes or No): No

n Kind Match: $1,968.75 j
In Kind Match to support this project shall be met using advertising or related work-

Awarding Agency: Office of Highway Safety (O.HS)

Federal Awarding Agency: National Highway traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA), US DOT
NHTSA Region 1 55 Broadway, RTV-8E Cambriljge, MA 02142
Bill 8i Supplemental Bill - 402 & Flex 405e j
FAIN Number (Sub Award): 69A37S22300004620NHO, 69A37522305UP4020NHO,
69A37523300004020NHO, 69A3752330SUP4020NHO, 69A37524300004020NHO,

69A3752430SUP4020NHO, 69A37525300004020NHO, 69A3752530SUP4020NHO,

69A3752430000405eNHA, 69A3752430SUP40SeNHA, 69A37S2530000405eNHA,

69A37S2530SUP405eNHA, 69A3752430000405eNHL, 69A3752430SUP40SeNHL,

69A37S2530000405eNHL, 69A3752530SUP405eNHL

Project Title & Number: New Hampshire Interscholastic Athletic Association (NHIAA) B4 271-
Funding Source; PSP & Task #: 25-04-03

UEI# C1UBCQ63KHG9 Expiration: 1/17/2025 Date Stamped: 10/08/24
Award Title: NHTSA 402 Police Traffic Services' and 405e Distracted Driving

Assistance Listing Number (ALN): 20.616, 20.600
Is This a Research and Development Project (Yes or No): No

In Kind Match: $1,968.75 |
In Kind Match to support this project shall be met using advertising or related work.
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Awarding Agency: Office of Highway Safety (0?|<S)
Federal Awarding Agency: National Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA), US DOT
NHTSA Region 1 55 Broadway, RTV-8E Cambridge, MA 02142
Bill & Supplemental Bill -405d

FAIN Number (Subaward): 69A3752230SUP405dNHL, 69A3752330000405dNHL,
69A3752330SUP405dNHL 69A3752430000405ldNHM, 69A3752430SUP405dNHM,
69A3752S30000405dNHM, 69A3752530SUP405dNHM

Project Title & Number: New Hampshire Interscholastic Athletic Association (NHIAA)
Funding Source; PSP & Task #: 25-07-03 |
UEI»ClUBCa63KHG9 Expiration: 1/17/2025 Date Stamped: 10/08/24

Award Title: NHTSA Section 405d ALCOHOL

Assistance Listing Number (ALN): 20.616

Is This a Research and Development Project (Yes or No): No

In Kind Match: $1,968.75 j
In Kind Match to support this project shall be met using advertising or related work.

Awarding Agency: Office of Highway Safety (OHS)
Federal Awarding Agency: National Highway Tjraffic Safety Administration (NHTSA), US DOT
NHTSA Region 1 55 Broadway, RTV-SE Cambridge, MA 02142
Bill & Supplemental Bill - 405b

FAIN Number (Subaward): 69A3752230SUP405bNHL, 69A3752330000405bNHL,
69A3752330SUP405bNHL 69A3752430000405bNHL, 69A3752430SUP405bNHL,

69A3752530000405bNHL, 69A3752530SUP405bNHL

Project Title & Number: New Hampshire Interscholastic Athletic Association (NHIAA)
Funding Source; PSP & Task tt: 25-01-03

UEIff C1UBCQ63KHG9 Expiration: 1/17/2025 Date Stamped: 10/08/24
Award Title: NHTSA 405b Occupant Protection

Assistance Listing Number (ALN): 20.616

Is This a Research and Development Project (\es or No): No
In Kind Match: $1,968.75 |
In Kind Match to support this project shall be met using advertising or related work.
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERT FICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Sccrclaf>' of State of the State of New Hampshire, do herebv certify that NEW HAMPSHIRE
I

INTERSCHOLASTIC ATHLETIC ASSOCIATION, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered

to transact business in New Hampshire on October 11, 1951. 1 funhcr certify that all fees and documents required by the Sccretaiy

of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this ofTice is concerned.

Business ID: 63953

Ceniflcaic Number: 0006807386

A.

y
OAm

5^

(!>:§

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be alTi.xed

the Seal of the Slate of New Hampshire,

this 13th dav of November A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Sccretar\' of State



NEW HAMPSHiW INTERSCHOLASVC ATHIETIC ASSXlATm

Esiablished 1947

251 Clinton Street ■ Concord, N.H. 03301-8432
(603) 228-867 i ■ Fax (603) 225-7978

www.nhiaa.org

Jeffrey T. Collins
E.vcculivc Director

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1, Gary Dempsey, hereby certify that:

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of the New Hampshire Interscholastic Athletic Association.

2. The following is a true representation of a vote taken by the NHIAA Executive Council, on November 21 2024 in
which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

VOTED; That Jeffrey T. Collins. Executive Director of the NHIAA is duly authorized on behalf of the New Hampshire
Interscholastic Athletic Association to enter into contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any
of Its agencies or departments and further is authorized to, execute any and all documents, agreements and other
instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modificatons thereto, which may In his/her judgment be desirable
or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 'hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect This
authority remains valid for ninety (90) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is
understood that the Slate of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed
above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the
extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the
State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 12/4/24

Gary Dempsey
President, NHIAA



NHINTER-01

yACrORO'
CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

MSNELL

DATE (MfcTOOnrVYY)

. 10/25/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND! EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING iNSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. |
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Davis & Towie Morrill & Everett, Inc.
115 Airport Road
Concord, NH 03301

cjM^cT f«ary Ellen Snell, GIG

(^.'wo.Ext): (603) 715-9754 wc.no):(603) 225-7935
Snn^hss- msneil@davistowle.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#

INSURER A Utica National Insurance Grouo

INSURED

NH Interscholastic Athletic Association, Inc.

251 Clinton Street

Concord, NH 03301

INSURER B

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: I REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOWiHAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUlREMEf^, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
JJB. TYPE OF INSURANCE

AOOL
INSO

SUBR
WVD POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
IMM/DQ/YYYYI

POLICY EXP
IMM/DD/YYYYl

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE I X I OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE

CPP1497447 8/1/2024 8/1/2025
DAMAGE TO RENTED

MEO EXP <Anv one pef»onl

PERSONAL S ADV INJURY

_GEN\ AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY LOC

OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

1,000,000

100,000

5,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

Al?lf?S ONLY

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
tEa aeddflntl

1,000,000

CPP1497447 8/1/2024 8/1/2025 BODILY INJURY (Pef pefson)
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EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH (XCURRENCE
2,000,000

CULP1496447 8/1/2024 8/1/2025
AGGREGATE

2,000,000

DEO I X RETENTIONS 10,000
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LlAfilUTY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
^andato^ in NH)
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

t /

0
1796064 8/1/2024 8/1/2025

y PER
^ STATUTE

OTH-
ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT
500,000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE
500,000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT
500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORO 101. Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space it required)
**Workers Compensation lnformation**3A States: NH

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Office of Highway Safety
33 Hazen Drive

Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORtZEO REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25(2016/03) j  ©1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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iVACHON CLUKAY
& Company PC

CERTIFIED PVBIIC ACCOVNTAfiTS

608 Chesiniii Sireei • Manchesicr, New Hampshire 03104
(603) 622-7070 • Fax; (603) 622-1452 • www.vachonclukay.coni

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Council of

New Hampshire interscholastlc Athletic Association, inc.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the New Hampshire Interscholastic Athletic
Association, Inc. (a non-profit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of
June 30, 2024 and 2023, and the related statements |of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for
the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of New Hampshire Interscholastic Athletic Association, Inc. as of June 30, 2024 and
2023, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of New
Hampshire Interscholastic Athletic Association, Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about New Hampshire Interscholastic
Athletic Association, Inc.'s ability to continue as a 'going concern within one year after the date that the
financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor's Responsibilitj' for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing



standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform jaudit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of New Hampshire Interscholastic Athletic Association, Inc.'s
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about New Hampshire Interscholastic Athletic Association, Inc.'s
ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant
matters that we identified during the audit.

Report on Supplementarj' Information

with governance regarding, among other matters, the
audit findings, and certain internal control related

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The schedules of game revenues and expenses are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are
not a required part of the financial statements. Suchj information is the responsibility of management and
was derived from and relates directly to the underl>jing accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselve^ and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United |states of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Manchester, New Hampshire

November 21, 2024



NEW HAMPSHIRE INTERSCHOLASTIC ATHLETIC ASSOCIATION, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30, 2024 and 2023

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash

Investments

Accounts receivable

Prepaid e.xpenses

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NONCURRENT ASSETS:

Land, building and equipment, net

TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Deferred revenue

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS:

Without donor restrictions:

Undesignated

With donor restrictions:

Student Leadership Sponsorships
Life of an Athlete

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2024

702,905

1,274,833

60,448

15,723

2,053,909

243,937

243,937

S  13,335

55,599

36,161

105,095

105,095

2,032,082

18,935

141,734

2,192,751

2023

$  553,073

1,165,279

62,085

86,550

1,866,987

259,597

259,597

$ 2,297,846 $ 2,126,584

10,499

43,854

16,836

71,189

71,189

1,894,726

18,935
141,734

2,055,395

$  2,297,846 $ 2,126,584

See notes to financial statements
3



EXHIBIT B

NEW HAMPSHIRE INTERSCHOLASTIC ATHLETIC

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

ASSOCIATION, INC.

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

REVENUES AND GAINS:

Game revenues

Membership dues

Broadcasting and corporate sponsorships
Contributions of nonfinancial assets

Officials registrations

Coaches education

Rulebook sales

Hall of Fame banquet

Athletic secretary conference

Earnings from investments

Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) on investments
Other income

TOTAL REVENUES AND GAINS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS;

Satisfaction of program restrictions

TOTAL NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS

TOTAL REVENUES, GAINS, AND OTHER SUPPORT

WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

EXPENSES:

Program services -

Sports programming

Life of an Athlete

Supporting services -

Management and general

TOTAL EXPENSES

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS

WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets released from restrictions

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS

WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - Beginning of year

NET ASSETS - End of year

See notes to financial statements

,191,708

298,027

,489,735

137,356

137,356

2,055,395

2024 2023

$  691,406 $  678,239

358,800 359,850

274,240 229,660

25,337 23,228

76,054 74,169

62,640 61,265

10,303 11,928

9,665 8,545

2,765 4,535

29,786 78,581

80,158 (3,918)

5,937 12,572

1,627,091 1,538,654

450

450

1,627,09) 1,539,104

1,124,963

450

298.676

1,424,089

1 15,015

(450)

(450)

114,565

1,940,830

$ 2,192,751 $ 2,055,395



EXHIBIT C

NEW HAMPSHIRE INTERSCHOLASTIC ATHLETIC ASSOCIATION, INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the Year Ended June 30,2024

Sports Life of Total Program Management

Programming an Athlete Services and General Total

Salaries and wages $  455,460 $  455,460 $  39,605 $  495,065

Employee benefits 4,430 4,430 385 4,815

Payroll taxes 36,223 36,223 3,150 39,373

Flexible benefit payments 34,745 34,745 3,021 37,766

Retirement expenses 43,842 43,842 3,812 47,654

Game expenses 434,181 434,18) 434,181

Professional services - 78,170 78,170

Insurance 55,872 55,872 2,922 58,794

Building maintenance - 26,483 26,483

Plaques and medals 44,489 44,489 44,489

Committee meeting expenses 11,761 11,761 11,761

Rulebooks 15,680 15,680 15,680

Printing 8,084 8,084 8,084

Electronic communications fees - 79,193 79,193

Office expenses - 7,239 7,239

Coaches education 1,625 1,625 1,625

Travel 10,880 10,880 10,880

Conferences 335 335 4,462 4,797

Postage - 3,835 3,835

Telephone - 9,349 9,349

Workshop/ Banquets Expenses 34,101 34,101 34,101

Property taxes - 5,869 5,869

Repairs and maintenance - 3,737 3,737

Electricity - 4,649 4,649

Dues - 3,075 3,075

Computer software fees -
3,411 3,411

Depreciation - 15,660 15,660

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES $  1,191,708 $ $  1,191,708 $  298,027 $  1,489,735

See notes tofinancial statements
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EXHIBIT C

NEW HAMPSHIRE INTERSCHOLASTIC ATHLETIC ASSOCIATION, INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Sports Life of Total Program Management

Programming an Athlete Services and General Total

Salaries and wages $  445,096 $  445,096 $  45,458 $  490,554

Employee benefits 4,683 4,683 407 5,090

Payroll taxes 35,100 35,100 3,052 38,152

Flexible benefit payments 33,645 33,645 2,926 36,571

Retirement expenses 47,484 47,484 4,129 51,613

Game expenses 398,405 398,405 398,405

Professional services - 80,285 80,285

Insurance 56,929 56,929 3,161 60,090

Building maintenance - 29,634 29,634

Plaques and medals 38,089 38,089 38,089

Committee meeting expenses 1 1,283 11,283 11,283

Kulebooks o,4^z 0,43Z 0,4:)/

Printing 1,835 1,835 1,835

Electronic communications fees - 73,055 73,055

OfTice expenses - 6,539 6,539

Coaches education 800 800 800

Travel 9,825 9,825 ' 9,825

Conferences 1,208 1,208 825 2,033

Postage - 2,970 2,970

Telephone - 8,037 8,037

Workshop/ Banquets Expenses 34,129 34,129 34,129

Property taxes - 5,622 5,622

Repairs and maintenance - 4,224 4,224

Electricity - 4,966 4,966

Dues - 3,125 3,125

Computer software fees 2,288 2,288

Depreciation %  450 450 17,973 18,423

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES $  1,124,963 $  450 $  1,125,413 $  298,676 $  1,424,089

See notes tofinancial statements
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EXHIBIT D

NEW HAMPSHIRE INTERSCHOLASTIC ATHLETIC ASSOCIATION, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash received from participants and supporters

Interest and dividends received

Other cash receipts

Cash paid to employees

Cash paid to suppliers

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchases of investments

Proceeds from sale of investment securities

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH

CASH - Beginning of year

CASH - End of year

RECONCILIATION OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS TO NET CASH

PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Change in net assets

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE CHANGES IN NET ASSETS TO

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES;

Depreciation and amortization

Net realized and unrealized (gain) loss on investments

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Deferred revenue

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

SUPPLEMENTAL DATA:

Noncash activities:

Net value of in-kind game supplies and other products

from corporate sponsor

See notes to financial statements
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2024 2023

S  1,506,835 $  1,573,520

29,786 78,581

5,937 12,572

(531,085) (521,417)

(832,245) (969,196)

179,228 174,060

(44,532) (92,1 17)

15,136 13,728

(29,396) (78,389)

149,832 95,671

553,073 457,402

$  702,905 $  553,073

$  137,356 S  1 14,565

15,660 18,423

(80,158) 3,918

1,637 151,574

70,827 (76,068)

2,836 (14,016)

1 1,745 (18,091)

19,325 (6,245)

$  179,228 S  174,060

$  25,337 $  23,228



NEW HAMPSHIRE INTERSCHOLASTIC ATHLETIC ASSOCIATION, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

The New Hampshire Interscholastic Athletic Association, Inc. (the "Association") is a non-profit
association organized in 1951. The Association is' responsible for the coordination of all recognized
interscholastic athletic events for its member schools within the State of New Hampshire. The
Association's principal sources of funding include revenue from tournament proceeds, membership dues
from member schools, and corporate sponsorship programs.

Nature of Activities

Program Services

The Association's primary service is the administration of state-wide athletics and regulations, to ensure
that competition is equalized. Administration programming is performed through organizing, supervising,
and coordinating the state-wide athletic program.

Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the Association confonn to accounting principles generally accepted in the
Unites States of America as applicable to nonprofit entities except as indicated hereafter. The following is
a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the reporting pronouncements pertaining
to Not-for-profit Entities included within the FASB|Accounting Standards Codification. The Association
is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to the following
net asset classifications:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject
to donor or certain grantor restrictions. The governing board has not designated, from net assets without
donor restrictions, net assets for an operating reserve.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor or certain grantor-imposed restrictions.
Some donor imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of
time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature,
where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are
released when a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated
purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both.



NEW HAMPSHIRE INTERSCHOLASTIC ATHLETIC ASSOCIATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

Recognition ofDonor Restrictions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Association that is, in
substance, unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as an increase in net
assets without restrictions, if the restriction expires in the reporting period in which the support is
recognized. All other donor restricted support is reported as an increase in net assets with donor
restrictions, depending on the nature of the restrictipn. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of
activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Association considers all unrestricted highly liquid
investments with a maturity of 90 days or less to be cash equivalents as follows:

Cash

2024

702,905

2023

$ 553,073

Concentrations of Credit Risk Arising from Cash Deposits in Excess ofInsured Limits

The Association maintains cash balances at several financial institutions located in New Hampshire.
Accounts at each institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At
June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Association has unirtured cash balances totaling $184,777 and $33,258,
respectively.

Investments

Investments, which consist of equities and fixed-income mutual funds are carried at fair value at
June 30, 2024 and 2023 in the statements of financial position. Unrealized gains and losses on
investments are reflected in the statements of activities. Investment revenues are reported net of related
expenses. Total investment fees for the years ended
respectively.

Contributions

June 30, 2024 and 2023 were $15,136 and $13,728,

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, contributions received are recorded as assets
with donor restrictions or assets without donor restrictions depending upon the existence and/or nature of
any donor restrictions.

Receivables

Trade receivables represent amounts due for game revenues, membership dues, corporate sponsorship and
broadcast rights, registrations, and other program rejvenue. The Association has no policy for recognizing
interest income on trade receivables. The Association uses the aging method to estimate the credit loss
allowance. No allowance for credit losses has been ijecorded for the years ending June 30, 2024 and 2023,
because management of the Association believes that all outstanding receivables are fully collectible. No
credit loss expense was reported for the years ending June 30, 2024 and 2023.



NEW HAMPSHIRE INTERSCHOLASTIC ̂fiTHLETIC ASSOCIATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. The ijVssociation charges depreciation to expense which
allocates the cost of property and equipment over the estimated useful life of the asset. The provision for
depreciation is determined by the straight-line method at rates intended to amortize the cost of related
assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Land improvements

Building and improvements

Equipment

Accrued Vacation

Years

5-10

10-39

3-10

Full time personnel accrue paid vacation at the rate of one (I) day per month or twelve (12) working days
per year. Employees may accumulate unused vacation days between five (5) and forty-five (45) days
based on job classification. Such accumulations are payable to the employee upon separation from
employment.

Revenue and Revenue Recognition

The Association recognizes contributions, donations, and miscellaneous income when cash is received.
Conditional promises to give; that is, those which contain a measurable performance or other barrier and a
right of return, are not recognized until the conditions on which they depend have been met.

A portion of the Associations revenue is derived from cost reimbursable state contacts and grants, which
are conditioned upon certain perfonnance requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable qualifying
expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue when the Association has incurred expenditures in
compliance with specific contract or grant provisions. Amounts received prior to incurring qualifying
expenditures are reported as revenue with donor restrictions for state contracts and grants which the
Association has determined that performance requirements will be met.

The Association recognizes revenue from contracts with customers in the form of game revenues,
membership assessments, corporate sponsorship, broadcast rights, and registration fees.

Game Revenues

Revenues recognized from sales of tickets for admission to games are recognized at the point in time the
sale takes place. All sales are paid in full at the point of sale. No revenue-related assets or liabilities are
reported in relation to these transactions.

Membership Assessments

Membership assessments revenue is recognized at the point in time when received and are due prior to the
start of the season. Membership assessments include a flat fee and a variable portion depending on the
number of sports a school district wishes to participate in. Membership assessments are refundable if the
district cancels prior to specific dates. Membership ̂ sessments which are received in advance of the start
of the season are deferred to the applicable period.

10



NEW HAMPSHIRE INTERSCHOLASTIC ATHLETIC ASSOCIATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

Corporate Sponsorship and Broadcast Rights

Revenue recognized from corporate sponsorship and broadcast rights are recognized using two different
approaches based on the types of revenue. If the benefit allows the customer to have a right-to-access, that
revenue is recognized over time, while other benefits that allow the customers the right-to-use, that
revenue is recognized at a point-in-time.
Under the Association's multimedia and sponsorship agreement, revenue related to the use of functional
intellectual property such as radio and television broadcast rights are recognized as revenue at the point in
time when the customer can first benefit.

Revenue recognized from symbolic intellectual property such as print, media, advertising, game
programs, corporate sponsorship, and other promotional activities are recorded over time. In addition,
symbolic intellectual property includes brands, team or trade names, logos, and franchise rights, which are
also recognized as revenue over time.

The Association's multimedia and sponsorship agreement, which has the same period as the Association
fiscal year end, includes a fixed guaranteed amount and variable portion for potential additional revenue.
The Association recognizes receivables for amounts which are guaranteed in the contract and agreement
that have not been received prior to the end of the fiscal year.

Registrations

The Association recognizes revenue related to officials registrations and coaches registrations at a point in
time attributable to commencement of the annual sports season. Registration fees received in advance of
the annual sports season are deferred.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management tojmake estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Functionai Allocation of Expenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the
statements of activities. The statements of functional expenses present the natural classification detail of
expenses by function.

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more than one
program or supporting function. Accordingly, certain indirect costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services benefited, based
on a flat percentage rate. The expenses that are
employee benefits, insurance, and travel.

primarily on percentage allocations calculated based
allocated include salary and wages, payroll taxes.

11



NEW HAMPSHIRE INTERSCHOLASTIC ATHLETIC ASSOCIATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

Income Taxes

The Association is exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Inlema) Revenue
Code and is also exempt from State of New Hampshire income taxes and, therefore, has made no
provision for Federal or State income taxes. In addition, the Association has been determined by the
Internal Revenue Service not to be a

Code.

Private Foundation" within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the

The Association is annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form
990) with the IRS. FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 740 entitled Accounting for Income
Taxes requires the Association to report uncertain| tax positions for financial reporting purposes. The
Association had no uncertain tax positions as of June 30, 2024, and, accordingly, does not have any
unrecognized tax benefits that need to be recognized

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

or disclosed in the financial statements.

Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, accounts payable, accrued expenses and other current
liabilities are carried in the financial statements at amounts which approximate fair value due to the
inherently short-term nature of the transactions. The fair values determined for financial instruments are
estimates, which for certain accounts may differ significantly from the amounts which could be realized
upon immediate liquidation.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications of amounts previously reported have been made to the accompanying financial
statements to maintain consistency between periods
previously reported.

The reclassifications had no impact on net assets, as

NOTE 2—ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Credit Losses

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326). The
objective of Topic 326 is to provide useful infonnation for decision making, by considering expected
credit losses on financial instruments. It requires financial assets which are measured on an amortized cost
basis to be presented at the net amount expected to be collected. Adoption of Topic 326 did not have a
material impact on the Association's statement of financial position, statement of activities, or statement
of cash flows.

NOTE 3—LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The Association's Finance Committee regularly monitors the availability of resources required to meet
general expenditures and contractual commitments over a 12-month period. It is the Finance Committee's
responsibility to meet with a professional financial [advisor on a yearly basis to review investments and
recommend changes to the investment portfolio in the long-term investment account. The Finance
Committee is responsible for ensuring the Association has an annual net asset retention of six months
operating costs in the long-term investment account.

12



NEW HAMPSHIRE INTERSCHOLASTIC ̂ THLETIC ASSOCIATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

The following table reflects the Association's financial assets as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, reduced by
amounts that are not available to meet general expenditures within one year of the statement of financial
position date because of donor restrictions.

2024 2023

Cash S  702,905 $  553,073

Investments 1,274,833 1,165,279

Accounts receivable 60,448 62,085

Total Financial Assets 2,038,186 1,780,437

Less:

Net assets with donor restrictions (160,669) (160,669)

Financial Assets Available to Meet Cash

Needs for General Expenditures Within One Year $ 1,877,517 S  1,619,768

NOTE 4—INVESTMENTS

Fair Value Measurements

The Association reports under the Fair Value Measurements pronouncements of the FASB Accounting
Standards Codification (FASB ASC 820-10), which establishes a framework for measuring fair value.
That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that-prioritizes the inputs of valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (level I measurerhent) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs
(level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below.

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or
liabilities in active markets that the Association has the ability to access.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation include:
•  Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
•  Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
•  Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;
•  Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by

correlation or other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable for
substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

are unobservable and significant to the fair valueLevel 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology

value of an asset or a liability might be categorized

measurement.

In some cases, the inputs used to measure the fair
within different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the fair value measurement is
categorized in its entirety in the same level of thejfair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is
significant to the entire measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to entire
measurement requires judgment, taking into account factors specific to the asset or liability. The
categorization of an asset within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the asset and
does not necessarily correspond to our assessment of the quality, risk, or liquidity profile of the asset or
liability.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE INTERSCHOLASTIC ATHLETIC ASSOCIATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value on a
recurring basis.

Cash or cash equivalenl money market funds: Valued at acquisition cost.

Money market funds, mutualfunds, and equities: Valued at the closing price reported on the active market
on which the individual securities are traded.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of fliture fair values. Furthermore, while the Association believes its
valuation methods are appropriate and consistent |With other market participants, the use of different
methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a
different fair value measurement at the reporting date.

The following tables set forth by level, within the
value:

fair value hierarchy, the Association's assets at fair

Equities

Mutual Funds

Total Assets at Fair Value

Equities

Mutual funds

Total Assets at Fair Value

Level I Level 2

$  683,772
591,061

Level 3 Total

$  683,772

591,061

$  1,274,833 $ $ $  1,274,833

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30. 2023

Level 1 Level 2

$  ̂96,100
569,179

Level 3 Total

$  596,100

569,179

$  1,165,279 $ $ $  1,165,279

Investment Valuation and Income Recoenition

The Association's investments as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 are stated at fair value. Shares of the separate
investment accounts are valued at quoted market prices, which represent the net value of shares held by
the Association at year-end. Purchases and sales of securities are recorded on a trade-date basis. Interest
income is recorded on the accrual basis. Dividends are recorded on the ex-dividend date.

Investments consist of equity and mutual funds, which are carried at market value (adjusted annually).
Realized and unrealized gains and losses are reflected in the statements of activities. Assets held in the
investment account were as follows at June 30, 2024 and 2023:

June 30. 2024

Equities

Mutual Funds

Cost

669,193

645,193

Market

Value

683,772

591,061

Unrealized

Gain fLossJ

S  14,579

(54,132)

$  1,314,386 $ 1,274,833 $ (39,553)
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NEW HAMPSHIRE INTERSCHOLASTIC ̂fiTHLETIC ASSOCIATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

June 30, 2023

Cost

Market

Value

Unrealized

Equities $ 651,818 $  596; 100 $  (55,718)

Mutual Funds 642,637 569,179 (73,458)

$  1,294,455 S  1,165,279 $  (129,176)

NOTE 5—ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

All receivables are considered fully collectible within the next fiscal year. Accounts receivable consist of
the following at June 30, 2024 and 2023:

Corporate Sponsors

Other miscellaneous receivables

2024

47,400

13,048

2023

37,500

24,585

$  60,448 $ 62,085

NOTE 6—LAND, BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT

Land, building and equipment consist of the following at fiscal year end:

Land and land improvements

Building and improvements

Equipment

Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Depreciation expense was $15,660 and $ 18,423 for t

NOTE 7—RETIREMENT PLAN

2024

83,786

511,226

126,340

2023

83,786

51 1,226
126,340

721,352 721,352

(477,415) (461,755)

$  243,937 $  259,597

he years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

The Association has a defined contribution plan (sponsored tax-sheltered annuity plan under Section 403
(b) of the Internal Revenue Code) which covers substantially all of its employees who meet the eligibility
requirements of the internal Revenue Code. The Association contributed $47,654 and $51,613 to the plan
for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

NOTE 8—NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions consist of the following at June 30, 2024 and 2023:

Student Leadership Sponsorships

Life of an Athlete

2024

18,935
141,734

2023

18,935
141,734

$  160,669 $ 160,669

15



NEW HAMPSHIRE INTERSCHOLASTIC ATHLETIC ASSOCIATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

note 9—REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

The Association has adopted Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2014-09 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (Topic 606), as amended as management believes the standard improved the usefulness
and understandability of the entity's financial reporting.

The following table provides information about the balances of receivables, contract assets, and contract

liabilities associated with contracts with customers for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023:

June 30, 2024

June 30, 2023

June 30, 2022

Receivables

$  59,240

$  58,806

$  48,012

Contract

Assets

NOTE 10—CONTINGENCIES

Contract

Liabilities

:  30,935

:  11,610

;  17,855

The Association receives funds under contracts from private and State sources, which require that the
Association use the funds within certain periods |and for purposes specified by governing laws and
regulations. If expenses should be found not to have been made in compliance with the laws and
regulations, the Association might be required to repay the funds.

No provisions have been made for these contingencies because specific amounts, if any, have not been
determined or assessed by grantors or their representatives as of June 30, 2024 and 2023. The Association
expects such amounts, if any at all, would be immaterial.

NOTE II—CONTRIBUTED NONFINANCIAL ASSETS

As part of a corporate sponsorship program, the Association received tournament balls at no cost, golf
incentives, and equipment discounts.

For the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, contributed nonfinancial assets recognized within the
statements of activities included:

Tournament balls

2024 2023

$  25,337 $ 23,228

The Association recognized nonfinancial assets within revenue which consisted of tournament balls.
Unless otherwise noted, contributed nonfinancial assets did not have donor-imposed restrictions. Under
terms of the agreement the balls are required to be utilized during tournament events. The number of
products and fair value of the products are established by the vendor. These values are comparable with
the market price of similar products available in the United States.

Consequently, the corporate sponsorship income received was charged to the following expenses:

Game expenses

i6

2024

$  25,337

2023

$  23,228



NEW HAMPSHIRE INTERSCHOLASTIC ATHLETIC ASSOCIATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 12—SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through November 21, 2024, which Is the date the Financial
statements were available to be issued.

17



SCIIEDULK I

NEW MAMPSIIIRE INTERSCIIOI^VStlC ATMLE l lC ASSOCIATION, INC.
SCHEDULES OF CAME REVENUES /^M) EXPENSES
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

GAME

REVENUE

NET PROEI'I"

GAME OR

_  EXPENSES (LOSS)
Year Ended .lune 30,2024

Basketball $ 178,216 $ 95,540 $ 82,676

Unified Basketball 278 457 (179)

Soccer 58,181 32,088 26,093

Football 111,296 49,021 62,275

Ice Mockey 121,633 60,621 61,012

Baseball 38,148 22,119 16,029

Volleyball 23,610 22,886 724

Unified Volleyball 552 305 247

Sofiball 17,690 11,834 5,856

Field Hockey 14,424 7,675 6,749

Winter Spirit 15,417 10,514 4,903

Wrestling 18,841 18,109 732

Outdoor Track 21,111 26,775 (5,664)

Unified Track 158 (158)

Lacrosse 38,539 18,722 19,817

Fall Spirit 10,930 5,780 5,150

Indoor Track 7,818 12,241 (4,423)

Gymnastics 2,069 2,552 (483)

Swimming 6,329 11,157 (4,828)

Golf 480 (480)

Skiing 3,380 (3,380)

Bowling 2,314 1,583 731

Tennis 8,934 (8.934)

Cross Countr)' 4,010 11,250 (7.240)

S 691,406 S 434.181 $ 257,225

Year Ended June 30.2023

Basketball S 164,297 $ 83,797 $ 80,500

Unified Basketball 529 447 82

Soccer 63,170 27,687 35,483

Unified Soccer 70 (70)

Football 116,066 44,620 71,446

Ice Hockey 104,863 53,090 51,773

Baseball 46,018 29,090 16,928

Vollcj'ball 27,865 21,868 5,997

Unified Volleyball 347 320 27

Sofiball 22,555 14,235 8,320

Field Hockey 16,857 7,065 9,792

Winter Spirit 13,857 9,895 3,962

Wrestling 19,270 15,068 4,202

Outdoor Track 1 1,351 25,037 (13,686)

Unified Track 855 (855)

Lacrosse 37,783 20,295 17,488

Fall Spirit 11,695 6,139 5,556

Gymna.stics 1,997 2,319 (322)

Swimming 5,240 9,334 (4,094)

Golf 432 (432)

Skiing 2,315 (2,315)

Bowling 2,200 665 1,535

Tennis 6,277 (6.277)

Cross Countr>' 4,120 10.830 (6,710)

$ 678,239 s 398,405 $ 279,834
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Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996

In accordance with 2 CFR 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Prinlples and Audit Requirements, found in §200.501(a), audit requirements for
Federal awards, non-federal entities that expend $1,000,000 or more in federal awards from all federal funding sources during their fiscal v®ar, must agree to
have a Single Audit conducted In accordance with §200.514 Scope of Audit. Further, §200.512 requires that the final report for such audit be completed
within nine (9) months of the entity's fiscal year end.

Sub-redpient (community/agency): nh iiittftchctotie abihuc AModnioo

Fiscal Year: (MoAr - MoAO o?/23to(W2<

Section A - Check"the aopropriate box:
Is] We did NOT exceed the federal expenditure threshold of $1,000,000 for the fiscal year referenced above. A Single Audit is not required for this fiscal year.
If checked, an Independent Audit Report ^ Financial Report is required, see Section B.
□ We DID meet or iexceed the federal wpenditure threshold of Sl,000,OM for the ftsMl year referenced above. We completed our Single Audit for the
above fiscal year and our report Is attachecJ, OR our most recently completed Single Audit Report Is iattached and our Single Audit Report for the fiscal year
referenced above will be completed on
□ We are exempt frorh the SIrigle Audit Requirement. Explain, and see Section 8:

and submitted to the New Hampshire Office of Highway Safety t>y:.

Section B - Complete if an Indeoendant Audit Report OR Financial Report is reouired' Check the aoprboriate box:
□ We cornpl«ed our Independent Audit Reoort'OR Financial Report for the atiove fiscal year and our report Is attached.
(B Our mostT^Mently completed Indeperident ^jdit Report OR Financial Report Is attached anfour Independent Audit Report QR Flanciai Report fo
year reference above will be completed on subrhitted to tile New Hampshire Office of Highway Safety bv:

for the fiscal

I certify that I am an individual authorized to complete this form. I further certify that the above Information is accurate and. If required, the audit report will be
submitted no later than nine (9) months after the fiscal year ending noted above.

Narrie: CaiUin Biundrt

ACBOunlsnl-

Authorized Cbiafllnancia! Oflker V , •

Date:_^|'^L^HLSignature:

SkPhnn«>-

Email:



NEW HAMPSHIREINTERSCHOLASTIC

ATHLETIC ASSOCIATION, INC.

President: Garj' Dempsey, John Stark 2026

Vice President: Sean Moynihan, Sunapee Middle 2025

Executive Director: Jeffrey T. Collins

2024-2025 REPRESENTATIVE COUNCIL

Steve Beals, Alvime

Linda Brodeur, Bishop Guertin

Andy Coppinger, Moultonborough
Gary Dempsey, John Stark

Richard Diehard, Manchester West

Amanda Downing, Inter-Lakes

Lisa Gingras, Nashua

Jamie Hayes, Newmarket

Paul Hoiriis, Newfound

Kip Jackson, Merrimack

Craig Kozens, Laconia

Robert Malay, Keene

Frank McBride, Goffstown

Dan Meserve, Hopkinton

Sean Moynihan, Sunapee

Kelly Owen, Bishop Brady

Bruce Parsons, Plymouth

Anthony Sperazzo, Gilford

Kyla Welch, Plymouth

Jack Widmer, Meredith

TBD State

NHASP

NHASP

NHASP

NHASP

NHASP

NHASP

NHADA

NHADA

NHASP

NHC

NHADA

NHSAA

NHASP

NHADA

NHASP

NHC

NHASP

NHASP

NHSAA

NHSBA

Department of Education

June Exp. Date

2025

2025

2025

2026

2025

2025

2026

2025

2025

2026

2025

2025

2025

2025

2025

2025

2025

2026

2026

2025

Executive Directors of the NHIAA

Ken Bean, Manchester 1947-1952

J. Robert Eddy, Concord 1953-1958

Walter A. Smith, Concord 1958-1984
I

James W. Desmarais, Plymouth 1984-2006

R. Patrick Corbin, Winclham 2006-2014

Jeffrey T. Collins, Exeter 2014-Present
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KEYADMI NISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Department of Highway Safety

Name of Contract: FFY-2025 NHIAA P-37

BUDGET PERIOD: SFY 2025

PERCENT PAID

>

o
c
z
H

?

D

FROM THIS FROM THIS

NAME JOB TITLE SALARY CONTRACT CONTRACT

Jeffrey Collins Executive Director 1 $160,000 0% $0

1

1
1

TOTAL SALARIES (Motto exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line!tern 1of Budget request) $0


